


Consumers who pressed 1 were transferred to a live CCL telemarketer.1 The telemarketer told 
consumers that the "free" cruise would cost $59 per person in port taxes and attempted to "up­
sell" the consumer with lodging in pre-boarding hotels, cruise excursions, enhanced 
accommodations, and other things. 

In response to the complaints, the Commission opened an investigation of several 
entities, including CCL, which was identified in some complaints, to determine whether their 
practices constituted unfair or deceptive acts or practices in violation of Section 5 of the FTC 
Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45 (as amended), or deceptive or abusive practices in violation of the 
Telemarketing Sales Rule, 16 C.F.R. pt 310 (as amended). On August 28, 2012, pursuant to a 
Commission resolution authorizing the use of compulsory process, 2 the FTC issued a CID to 
CCL seeking, among other things, information concerning the company's role in robocall 
campaigns and its telemarketing practices. 3 Although CCL filed a petition to quash or modify 
the CID,4 it later withdrew that petition and provided a number of responses. After staff alerted 
CCL to certain deficiencies, CCL made a supplemental production. 5 Further review of the 
original and supplemental productions made it apparent to FTC staff that CCL had withheld 

1 CCL's business includes marketing and selling cruises 
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information about its telemarketing lead generators.6 Accordingly, on March 22, 2013, the 
Commission issued a follow-up CID specifically seeking such materials.7 In particular, the CID 
seeks: 

D-2 All documents that relate to any entity that used or uses phone calls 
to generate potential leads or customers for Caribbean Cruise Line, 
Inc. 

D-4 All documents that relate to any entity that provided or used 
automated dialers to generate potential leads or customers for 
Caribbean Cruise Line, Inc. 8 

The CID also sought information about additional named entities and individuals that, based on 
staff's review of documents provided by CCL in its delayed supplemental response to the first 
CID and other investigative leads, appear to have been involved in the robocall campaign.9 That 
specification in the CID seeks: 
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II. ANALYSIS 

A. CCL Has Not Shown that the CID is Overbroad or Seeks Irrelevant 
Information 

CCL's principal claim is that the CID seeks irrelevant information that falls outside the 
scope ofthe FTC's investigation. In particular, CCL claims that Specification D-1, which 
requires the production of correspondence, notes, work orders and other documents that relate to 
particular named entities or individuals, is overbroad and seeks information that "has nothing to 
do with the nature of the FTC's investigation." Similarly, CCL argues that "it is an absurdity to 
state that the names of CCL's customers and/or lead generators [demanded by Specifications D-2 
and D-4] are reasonably related to the FTC's inquiry, as names logically cannot contain 
information related to an entity's conduct."11 

We find CCL's objection to be without merit. Agency compulsory process is proper if 
the inquiry is within the authority of the agency, the demand is not too indefinite, and the 
information sought is reasonably relevant to the inquiry, as that inquiry is defined in the 
investigatory resolutionY It is well establishedthat agencies have wide latitude to determine 
what information is relevant to their law enforcement investigations. 13 In the context of an 
administrative CID, "relevance" is defined broadly and with deference to the administrative 
agency's determination. 14 The specifications ofthe CID must be upheld so long as the 
information sought is 
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CCL also argues that Specification D-1 should be quashed because the request is over­
inclusive to the extent that it demands all documents regarding the parti~ular named entities or 
individuals.17 CCL admits that the specification calls for relevant material.18 Specification D-1 
calls for the production of documents related to entities and individuals that CCL's to 
the first CID and other · ve leads show 

companies and individuals are of obvious relevance to the investigation. 

Looking at the details of CCL's argument reveals that CCL's claim of over-inclusiveness 
is, at best, only a theoretical objection to the specification. 



CCL also objects to the scope of Specifications D-2 and D-4, which seek documents 
concerning entities that use phone calls or 



These instructions 





[t]hrough compulsory process and protected by section 21(b) ofthe 
Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. 57b-2(b) ... and 
designated by the submitter as confidential and protected by ... 15 
U.S.C. 57b-2(f) []and§ 4.10(d) of[Commissionrules] ... maybe 
disclosed in Commission administrative or court proceedings 
subject to Commission or court protective or in camera orders as 
appropriate .... Prior to disclosure of such material in a 
proceeding, the submitter will be afforded an opportunity to seek 
an appropriate protective or in camera order. 36 

These procedures provide ample protection for CCL for any responsive trade secrets or 
proprietary information that might be produced.37 Consequently, there is no basis to limit or 
quash the CID merely because the documents may include confidential information. 

III. CONCLUSION 

For the foregoing reasons, 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT the Petition of Caribbean Cruise Line, Inc. to Limit 
or Quash the Civil Investigation Demand be, and it hereby is, DENIED. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED THAT to the 




